

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT HELD OCTOBER 10, 2022 AT 10:00 A.M.

Pursuant to posted notice, the special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District was held on Monday, October 10th at 10:00 AM, at 13975 Milam Road, Colorado Springs, CO, and via telephone and video conference call.

In attendance were Directors:

Bill Heeter Lynn Shepherd Ecton Espenlaub Rick Stauch Debbie Perry

Also in attendance were:

Kevin Walker, WSDM District Managers Rebecca Hardekopf, WSDM District Managers Jamie Adams, Warren Management Bob Gardner, Gardner Law Firm Laura Gardner, Gardner Law Firm Kevin Combs

- 1. Call to Order: President Heeter called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM.
- <u>2. Introduction of Legal Counsel Laura Gardner:</u> Mr. Bob Gardner and Ms. Laura Gardner introduced themselves and discussed their professional background. Mr. Gardner noted that Ms. Gardner will be the District's primary attorney. Ms. Gardner discussed the upcoming 2023 Election and noted they will be working on finding a Designated Election Official.
- 3. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Reaffirmation of Disclosures: President Heeter confirmed a quorum was present. There were no additional disclosures made by Board Members.
- <u>4. Approval of the Agenda:</u> President Heeter tabled Agenda item 8.a. to the November Board meeting. Director Stauch moved to approve the Agenda as amended; seconded by Director Espenlaub. Motion passed unanimously.
- <u>5. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes September 19, 2022:</u> After review, Director Espenlaub moved to approve the September 19, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes as presented; seconded by Director Shepherd. Motion passed unanimously.

6. Financial Update

- a. Review and approval of Unaudited Financial Statements as of September 30, 2022: Director Perry presented the Unaudited Financial Statements as of September 30, 2022. Director Shepherd moved to approve the Unaudited Financial Statements as of September 30, 2022; seconded by Director Stauch. Motion passed unanimously.
- b. Approval of Payables for the Period Ending October 10, 2022: After review, Director Espenlaub moved to approve the Payables for the period ending October 10, 2022 including the Waste Connections invoice once received, as well as the Meridian Fire & Security invoices, The Warren Management Group, and Tall Timbers; seconded by Director Stauch. Motion passed unanimously.
- c. FEMA Funds Update: Mr. Walker reported that FEMA communicated that they cannot approve the request because they did not have proof of payment for some of the invoices that were submitted. Mr. Walker explained there was not proof of payment due to missing data from 2013, but the information has been requested from American National Bank and a thirty-day extension has been granted.
- d. Reserve Study Update: Mr. Combs discussed the Reserve Study with the Board.
- e. Grant Timeline for Irrigation: The grant timeline for irrigation is January 2023.
- f. 2022 Budget Amendment Review: The deadline for a 2022 Budget Amendment is December 15th. Ms. Hardekopf noted that a Budget Amendment may not be necessary since the District is currently under budget for total expenses.
- g. Preliminary Budget 2023 Discussion: The Board engaged in detailed discussion on the preliminary 2023 budget. The Board and legal counsel determined that \$25,000 may be an appropriate amount to budget for election costs. Director Perry brought to the board a discussion of potentially having lower taxes and mill levy reductions, accelerated bond payment, and the board should consider what the best values for tax dollars should be. Director Perry proposed selling the Lodge and creating two more lots for houses in its place. The Board discussed needing community feedback and research on what the requirements would be in order to pursue this idea further. Mr. Walker recommended contacting the Planning Department as the first step. The Board discussed the proposal to reduce the mill levies. Director Stauch moved to formulate the 2023 budget based on the assumption that the mill levy will not change; seconded by President Heeter. Motion passed 4 to 1 with Director Perry abstaining. President Heeter moved to direct Director Perry to look at the implications of changing the status of the Lodge and outside properties with the idea that is a long-term project for the Board to explore; seconded by Director Espenlaub. Motion passed unanimously. The Board discussed Lodge marketing costs and requested more detail for budgeting purposes. The Board scheduled a special Board meeting to further discuss the budget for Monday, October 24, 2022 at 10:00 AM.

7. Lodge Management Update:

- a. Current Performance Update: There was no discussion.
- b. Update on Patio Lights: The patio lights are completed.
- c. Magnolia Sound System Update: Director Shepherd provided a Magnolia sound system update. She noted the tech support service has been installed and is currently running. The total amount paid for the system to date is \$27,000. The quote for the remaining outdoor equipment including the speaker, subwoofer, and amp totals \$9,000. She noted the Board previously approved the expenditures. The Board agreed to move forward with the purchase of the remaining outdoor equipment.
- d. Status of Sale of Appliances: Ms. Hardekopf reported the warming cabinet was sold for \$1,800 and the freezer and fridge were both sold for \$1,500 each. Ms. Adams noted the ice machine is broken and needs to be removed. The Board discussed the potential for renting an ice machine as it is used often by the residents when rental occur.
- e. Holiday Lights Proposals: The Board discussed holiday lights and took no action.

8. Landscaping Issues:

- a. Irrigation Discussion, Current System Plan and RFP Status: The Board tabled this item until the next Board meeting.
- b. Community Chipping Event Recap: President Heeter reported the chipping event was a success and well received by the community. He noted it was more expensive than expected.
- c. Addition of 3rd Parcel Box at Mailbox: President Heeter explained the current parcel box is not large enough for larger packages. USPS is not required to deliver large packages further than half a mile from the mailboxes and they could be sent back to the post office for pick up. A proposal for a new larger parcel box plus installation is \$3,200. Director Espenlaub moved to approve the new parcel box; seconded by Director Stauch. Motion passed unanimously.
- d. Kimley Horn Additional Expenses Discussion: There was no discussion.
- 9. Cathedral Pines HOA Update: Director Stauch discussed the presentation they are doing in opposition of Flying Horse North and the average lot size of Cathedral Pines and the average density.
- <u>10. Legal Matters:</u> There was no discussion.
- 11. Public Comment: There was no public comment.

12. Other Business

a. Future Topic Agenda Timetable

i. November: 2023 Budget Approval/ Lodge Objectives Discussion

ii. December: No Meeting

iii. January: Annual Meeting Discussion

13. Executive Session (§24-6-402(4)(f) C.R.S.)

- a. Discuss Management Contracts for 2023: Director Shepherd moved to enter into Executive Session pursuant to §24-6-402(4)(f) C.R.S. for the purpose of discussing management contracts for 2023 at 12:27 PM; seconded by Director Espenlaub. Motion passed unanimously. President Heeter motioned to adjourn Executive Session; seconded by Director Espenlaub. Motion Passed unanimously.
- 14. Adjournment: The next Board meeting is scheduled for November 29, 2022 at 6:00 PM. Director Espenlaub moved to adjourn the meeting at 1:00 PM; seconded by Director Stauch. Motion passed unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Rebecca Hardskopf

By: Rebecca Hardekopf, District Manager

THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL OCTOBER 10, 2022 MINUTES OF THE CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT.